
October 28, 2014                                                     Minutes Regular Council Meeting                                                       Page 1 of 4 
 

MINUTES OF THE COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF SILVER CITY 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 

Grant County Administration Center, 1400 Hwy 180, Silver City, NM 
October 28, 2014, 6:00 p.m. 

 
Present:      Also Present:   
Michael S. Morones, Mayor    Alex C. Brown, Town Manager-Finance Director 
Cynthia Ann Bettison, District 1    Robert L. Scavron, Town Attorney  
Lynda D. Aiman-Smith, District 2   Ann L. Mackie, Town Clerk 
Jose A. Ray, Jr., District 3    Dr. Terry Timme, Office of Sustainability 
Guadalupe Cano, District 4    James Marshall, Assistant Town Manager 
 
              
1.  CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – Mayor Morones called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.    
 
2.  CEREMONIES – None. 
 
3.  PROCLAMATIONS – None.   
 
4.  PUBLIC INPUT –   Jeanne Martin said she was a member of a group of citizens that were concerned about the 
persistent tethering and chaining of dogs as a way of life, and she gave examples as to why the practice was  inhumane 
to the animal, etc. Lucy Whitmarsh, President of the Board of the Silver City MainStreet Project, provided details of 
the upcoming lighted Christmas parade on November 29th, and she thanked the Town's Public Works Department, the 
Police Department, and the Fire Department for all of their help with the recent All Souls Race on Boston Hill. 
 
5.  COUNCIL COMMENTS – The Council commented on the following: how the Town's current Animal Ordinance 
covered the tethering or persistent tethering or chaining of dogs and persons should contact the Animal Control Officer 
to report violations; issues with resurfaced streets that had not been striped yet and an update from Manager Brown; an 
upcoming Open Meetings Act Workshop on October 30th at Western New Mexico University (WNMU) Student 
Memorial Building; how Councilor Aiman-Smith would be available to talk to the public in an open forum on 
November 19th from 6:30 p.m. to 8:30 p.m. at the WNMU Student Memorial Building Meeting Room 3; an upcoming 
digital literacy program at the Silver City Public Library on October 30th; thanks  to the Town, PNM, and the 
Volunteer Center for providing new reusable bags to the public; people were asked to support the different activities in 
Silver City and Grant County and to support WNMU by attending their games; how Councilor Ray was proud of the 
people that were running for office in Grant County because they were doing it from the heart; how the Town was 
doing wonderful cement work on Market Street and Pinos Altos Street for new sidewalks; how people on the Incentive 
Review Committee should only serve for 1 or 2 years; an upcoming grand opening for the WNMU's Center for Gender 
Equity on October 30th; a reminder to the public to vote on November 4th; the reasons why the Council does not 
engage in debate or ask questions during the Public Input segment of the meeting; and how Councilor Ray was 
working with CATS (Community Access Television of Silver) to interview WNMU students and that he hoped to 
interview some of the professors and athletes. 
 
6.  CHANGES TO THE AGENDA – None. 
 
7.  APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES – Regular Meeting on October 14, 2014 - Councilor Bettison moved to 
approve the revised minutes of the Regular Town Council Meeting of October 14, 2014 as presented. Councilor 
Aiman-Smith seconded. Mayor Morones stated there was a motion and a second to approve the revised minutes for the 
Regular Meeting of October 14, 2014. He asked if there was any discussion, and there was none. He asked all those in 
favor to say aye, and all 4 Councilors said aye. He asked if any were opposed, and there were none. Motion carried.  
 
 
 



October 28, 2014                                                     Minutes Regular Council Meeting                                                       Page 2 of 4 
 

8. REPORTS – 
A. Presentation of the 2012 Community Assessment survey data and results for the Town of Silver City by 
Chris DeBolt, Coordinator of the Grant County Community Health Council. Ms. DeBolt reported the Town of 
Silver City was 1 of 9 communities that were surveyed and that there were 5,055 respondents, a state record, with 
3,213 of those respondents from within the boundaries of the Town. She reported on the following health and wellness 
issues for Silver City according to the survey respondents: 1) for Community and Social Health the top 3 categories 
were affordable housing, substance/alcohol abuse, and driving while intoxicated, 2) for Community and Social Health 
for Children/Teens the top 3 categories were activities for children and teens, substance abuse, and gang violence, 3) 
for Environmental Health the top 3 categories were road conditions, wildland fire danger, and water (quality, quantity, 
and Gila River management), 4) for Access to Health Services the top 3 categories were health care insurance, access 
to local specialty care providers, and substance/alcohol use treatment, and 5) for Economic Health the top 3 categories 
were workforce development, job skill training, and homelessness. She reported the results of the Grant County survey 
mirrored those from Silver City. She said the survey information could be used for grants, planning, etc., and that the 
Grant County Community Health Council could provide further assistance if needed. There was further discussion. 
 
B. Staff reports. Manager Brown reported the following: the lights at Scott Park were going up that date; the Town 
was putting out a bid for the concession stand that would be awarded in December; the work was continuing on the F 
Street sewer line and the Blackhawk sewer line; the Phase 2 of Silver Street and a CDBG project for 12 blocks of 
streets in Chihuahua Hill were going out to bid; 2 upcoming Colonias projects; the club house at the golf course was 
starting; and the new police cars would be picked up the next day. He said all of the funding that was secured 6 months 
ago was being spent, and most of the money applied to the needs that he had just reported on. There was further 
discussion. 
 
Dr. Terry Timme with the Town's Office of Sustainability thanked the Town, PNM, and the Volunteer Center for 
providing the funds to supply the Town and all residents with reusable shopping bags to help go along with the 
enactment of the ordinance that would outlaw single-use carry-out plastic bags in Silver City. He said people could 
pick up the bags at his office or at City Hall, and community service volunteers and the Girl Scouts would also help 
distribute the bags throughout the town.  
 
Manager Brown introduced James Marshall, the new Assistant Town Manager, and said he came on the job to help 
with efficiencies and to get more community output by working with the community. Mr. Marshall thanked the Town 
staff and his new coworkers for making sure his transition was smooth, and he thanked Councilor Aiman-Smith for 
working with him since day 1 and said she had an amazing background in the work that he was tasked to do. He said 
Mr. Brown had assigned him with 4 immediate priority areas: the Police Department, the Fire Department, the 
Community Development Department, and doing some of the community outreach work. He described the work that 
he was doing with each department; how he had connected with the Continental Divide Trail Group about signage 
issues that they were working on for the trail; how he was working with Gary Stailey regarding a program with 
Juvenile Probation and Parole kids to improve their skills and capacity at the conclusion of their community service; 
how he connected with the Grant County Community Health Council on their Public Trees for Public Health Program; 
how he was working with the Fire Department on the Community Wildfire Protection Plan and the community input 
needs of that plan; and how he would be attending several upcoming community meetings. There was further 
discussion. 
 
9.  PUBLIC HEARINGS - None. 
 
10. UNFINISHED BUSINESS – None. 
 
11. NEW BUSINESS –  
A. Presentation by YESCO (Yearout Energy Services Company) regarding the water meter radio read system. 
Manager Brown said throughout the budget process and during the last few months he had talked about converting to 
the radio read water meter system. He said the Town staff had been looking at different types of meters, and they had 
been working with YESCO which was a company that used performance contracting. He said it was the next step to 
working toward the goals of the Water Conservation Plan. He introduced Scott Griffith, Colby Geer, and Don Shuler 



October 28, 2014                                                     Minutes Regular Council Meeting                                                       Page 3 of 4 
 

from YESCO, and Chris McNeil from the Town's Meter Division. Mr. Griffith gave a presentation and stated that in 
New Mexico there was a way to procure upgrades for cities and counties that was called Energy Performance 
Contracting. He said YESCO was a fully owned subsidiary of Yearout Mechanical, the largest mechanical in New 
Mexico that had been around for over 50 years and had over 500 employees in New Mexico. He said Energy 
Performance Contracting was supported by the New Mexico statutes under the Public Facility Energy Efficiency and 
Water Conservation Act (NMSA 1978, Sections 6.23.1-10). He said it reduced water usage, energy usage, operating 
and maintenance costs, emissions, and waste. He said YESCO would evaluate the Town's infrastructure to look at 
ways to save by changing out the system, and the project would not cost the Town any money to do because the 
savings would pay for it to be done. He described the benefits and challenges of performance contracting with 
YESCO's Utility Business Proposition. He said the capital improvements on the project would be funded by 
guaranteed savings, and the risk of upgrading the Town's system would be placed on YESCO and not the Town. He 
said with a performance contract the savings and income stream were guaranteed,  and that YESCO had to apply to the 
State's Energy, Minerals and Natural Resources Department (EMNRD) to be qualified to do the project and they were 
the only ESCO (Energy Services Company) given the approval in New Mexico for a water project. He said it had been 
done in Arizona, Texas, and Colorado for the past 18 years. He stated that in New Mexico they could go up to 25 years 
on utility infrastructure improvement projects, and that once the project was engineered they would stick to those 
figures and would have no change orders. He said the contrast between traditional contracting and performance 
contracting was that performance contracting would improve utility operations efficiency, decrease costs for monthly 
meter readings, and reduce the energy usage in the whole system. He said they did an extensive audit on the Town's 
entire system and they tested a lot of the meters to see how they were reading. He said they were misreading with an 
accuracy of only 92 percent so there was a lot of savings to be had in the process. He showed some examples of the 
meters that were pulled out of the ground and stated the Town was delivering more water than what it was billing for. 
He described the benefits of a drive by application and said it would show a history of water usage for the past 30 days. 
He provided the following data from the Town's water audit findings: 1) that over a period of a year the Town could 
recover revenues in the amount of $295,000 for water the Town was delivering, but not billing for; 2) that the average 
bill for water was 690,548 kilogallons, 3) that the water production recovery that would be saved was 42,000 
kilogallons, 4) that the new meter accuracy would be 99.9 percent, and 5) the guaranteed revenue generation was 
$237,000 per year and that money could be put towards buying new meters. He said all of the Town's meters could be 
switched out in 6 to 8 months. He described how the guaranteed savings amount of $237,187 per year for a 22 year 
term would be between $5,200,000 and $5,700,000, and the project cost would probably be 70 percent of that cost. He 
described the steps in the process and said YESCO's Investment Grade Audit of the project would be verified by the 
State's EMNRD and the State Water Engineer. Mr. Griffith and Manager Brown answered questions from the Council 
and Attorney Scavron. 
 
Councilor Bettison moved for a point of privilege for a short break at 7:50 p.m. Councilor Cano seconded. Mayor 
Morones said there was a motion and a second for a short recess. He asked all those in favor to say aye, and all 4 
Councilors said aye. He asked if any were opposed, and there were none. Motion carried. Mayor Morones called the 
meeting back to order at 7:57 p.m. 
 
Manager Brown said the next step was to meet with the State Engineer and that he would be doing so the next day. He 
said what they were truly getting from the project was better customer service, but that would not satisfy the State's 
EMNRD or the State Engineer so they had to go through the processes. There was further discussion. 
  
B. Appointment to the Planning and Zoning Commission. Mayor Morones said they had 2 vacancies and 1 
application. He said the Chair and staff had no objections to the appointment of Dorothea "Susie" Siedentop. He said 
he planned to appoint her if there were no objections. There were no objections from the Council so Ms. Siedentop was 
appointed to the Planning and Zoning Commission. 
 
C. Approval / Disapproval of changing the November 18, 2014 Council Meeting to another date.  Mayor 
Morones said the November 18th meeting would be important with a number of things to vote on. He said Councilor 
Bettison would be traveling that day and would not be available by phone, and that he would like a full Council. He 
said he would open it up for discussion or for a motion. Councilor Bettison said she appreciated that it was being 
discussed since she would not be available by phone on that date. She moved to change the November 18, 2014 



October 28, 2014                                                     Minutes Regular Council Meeting                                                       Page 4 of 4 
 

Council Meeting to Monday, November 17, 2014 in the same chambers at 6:00 p.m. Councilor Aiman-Smith seconded 
the motion. Mayor Morones said there was a motion and a second to change the November 18, 2014 Council meeting 
to Monday, November 17, 2014 in the same chambers at the same time. He asked if there was any further discussion, 
and there was none. He asked if the room was available, and Clerk Mackie said yes. He asked if everybody was 
available, and the Councilors said yes. He asked all those in favor to say aye, and all 4 Councilors said aye. He asked if 
any were opposed, and there were none. Motion carried. 
 
12.  ADJOURNMENT – Mayor Morones asked for a motion to adjourn. Councilor Bettison moved to adjourn at 8:04 
p.m., and Councilor Ray seconded. Mayor Morones stated there was a motion and a second to adjourn. He asked all 
those in favor to say aye, and all 4 Councilors said aye. He asked if there were any opposed, and there were none. 
Motion carried.  
 
       /s/ 
       ___________________________________ 
       Michael S. Morones, Mayor 
 
       Attest: 
       /s/ 
       ___________________________________ 
       Ann L. Mackie, Town Clerk 


